
 
 
 

 

 
Democratic Services   

Guildhall, High Street, Bath BA1 5AW   

Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard Date: 17
th
 September 2014 

Direct Lines - Tel: 01225 394452  Fax: 01225 394439 E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk 

Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk   

 
 
To: All Members of the Economic and Community Development Policy 

Development and Scrutiny Panel 
 
Councillor Robin Moss 
Councillor Cherry Beath 
Councillor Nathan Hartley 
Councillor Patrick Anketell-Jones 
Councillor Brian Simmons 
Councillor Andrew Furse 
Councillor Geoff Ward 
Councillor David Martin 
 

 
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers  
Press and Public  

 
 
Dear Member 
 
Economic and Community Development Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel: 
Thursday, 25th September, 2014  
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Economic and Community Development Policy 
Development and Scrutiny Panel, to be held on Thursday, 25th September, 2014 at 1.00 
pm in the Council Chamber  - Guildhall, Bath. 
 
The agenda is set out overleaf. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Jack Latkovic 
for Chief Executive 
 
 
 

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative 
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author 
whose details are listed at the end of each report. 

This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper 



 

 

 
NOTES: 
 

1. Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the 
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Jack Latkovic who 
is available by telephoning Bath 01225 394452 or by calling at the Guildhall Bath (during 
normal office hours). 
 

2. Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to 
make their views known at meetings. They may make a statement relevant to what the 
meeting has power to do.  They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a 
group.  Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting 
(this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays notice must be received in Democratic 
Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday)  
 

The public may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Questions 
must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services at least two full working days in 
advance of the meeting (this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must 
be received in Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday). If an answer cannot 
be prepared in time for the meeting it will be sent out within five days afterwards. Further 
details of the scheme can be obtained by contacting Jack Latkovic as above. 

 
3. Details of Decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
published as soon as possible after the meeting, and also circulated with the agenda for 
the next meeting.  In the meantime details can be obtained by contacting Jack Latkovic as 
above. 
 

Appendices to reports are available for inspection as follows:- 
 

Public Access points - Riverside - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, Hollies - Midsomer 
Norton, and Bath Central, Keynsham and Midsomer Norton public libraries.   
 
For Councillors and Officers papers may be inspected via Political Group Research 
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members' Rooms. 
 

4. Recording at Meetings:- 
 
The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and 
recording by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control. 
 
Some of our meetings are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all 
or part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, 
please make yourself known to the camera operators. 
 
To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or 
guardians before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to 
the camera operator 
 
The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet 
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast An archived recording of the proceedings will also be 
available for viewing after the meeting. The Council may also use the images/sound 
recordings on its social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters. 
 



 

 

5. Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register which will be circulated at the 
meeting. 
 

6. THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM 
NUMBER. 
 
 

7. Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the 
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point.  The designated exits are 
sign-posted. 
 

Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people. 
 

 



 

 

Economic and Community Development Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel - 
Thursday, 25th September, 2014 

 
at 1.00 pm in the Council Chamber  - Guildhall, Bath 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 

2. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  

 The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out 
under Note 6. 

 

 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any 
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to 
indicate: 

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare. 

(b) The nature of their interest. 

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,   
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of 
Interests) 

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is 
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his 
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting. 

 

5. TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN  

 

6. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, 
STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF 
THIS MEETING  

 At the time of publication no notifications had been received. 

 

 



 

 

7. MINUTES (Pages 7 - 14) 

 

8. CABINET MEMBERS' UPDATES (30 MINUTES)  

 Members of the Cabinet will update the Panel on any relevant issues. Panel Members 
may ask questions. 

 

9. SAFE PLACES SCHEME (FORMERLY COMMUNITY SAFETY ZONES) UPDATE (30 
MINUTES) (Pages 15 - 18) 

 The report updates the Panel on the ‘Safe Places Scheme’ – formerly known as 
‘Community Safety Zones’ for adults with learning disabilities.  The report has been 
prepared by Yoursay Advocacy. 
 
The Panel are asked to receive the report and to identify any questions arising from 
the report, 

 

10. UPDATE ON APPRENTICESHIP , WORK PLACEMENTS, WORK EXPERIENCE, 
INTERNSHIPS AND VOLUNTEERING POLICY (30 MINUTES) (Pages 19 - 22) 

 The Panel will receive an update on the Council’s Apprenticeship Work Placements, 
Work Experience, Internships and Volunteering Policy. 
 
The Panel are asked to consider an update following the previous panel presentation 
on the 23rd May 2013, concerning the proposed Apprenticeships, Work Placements, 
Work Experience, Internships and Volunteering Policy, which was adopted by full 
Council in September 2013. 

 

11. PANEL WORKPLAN (Pages 23 - 26) 

 This report presents the latest workplan for the Panel. 

 
The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Jack Latkovic who can be contacted on  
01225 394452. 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

Economic and Community Development Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Thursday, 17th July, 2014 

 

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET 
 
ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND 
SCRUTINY PANEL 
 
Thursday, 17th July, 2014 

 
Present:- Councillors Cherry Beath (Vice-Chair), Patrick Anketell-Jones, Brian Simmons, 
David Martin, Rob Appleyard and Nathan Hartley 
 
 

 
19 
  

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  
 
Councillor Cherry Beath informed the meeting that Councillor Robin Moss, regular 
Chairman of the Panel, had sent his apologies for this meeting.  Therefore, 
Councillor Beath, as regular Vice Chair of the Panel, would Chair this meeting only. 
 
 

20 
  

EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  
 
The Democratic Services Officer drew attention to the emergency evacuation 
procedure. 

 
 

21 
  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
Councillors Moss, Ward and Furse had sent their apologies to the Panel. Councillor 
Rob Appleyard was a substitute for Councillor Furse. 
 

22 
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were none. 
 

23 
  

TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN  
 
There was none. 
 

24 
  

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, 
STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF 
THIS MEETING  
 
The Chair informed the meeting that the Members of the Panel had received a 
number of statements about Warm Water Pools.   
 
The Chair invited Alexander Jones Grech, Susan Charles and Susan Smith to read 
out their statements.  All three speakers presented their views on benefits from the 
Warm Water Pools provision.  Speakers also asked the Panel to support their 
suggestion for a provision of the Warm Water Pools. 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



 

 

2 

Economic and Community Development Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Thursday, 17th July, 2014 

 

The Chair informed the meeting that all statements submitted to the Panel would be 
placed on the Minute Book at Democratic Services, and all of these statements 
would be forwarded to the relevant Cabinet Member for consideration. 
 
The Chair asked Jack Latkovic (Senior Democratic Services Officer) to read out a 
briefing note from the Council in terms of the Warm Water Pools provision. 
 
Statement from the Council: 
 
‘Warm Water Exercise group – Briefing Note 
 
The Council is looking at a range of options – including accessible teaching pools – 
as it seeks to modernise its leisure facilities, this is supported by the ‘Fit for Life’ 
Strategy.  
 
The Council and the CCG will be working closely to ensure that the new leisure 
contract provides the best possible service for local people and supports them to live 
healthy lifestyles.   
 
It is important to clarify that the provision of warm water swimming facilities is not the 
same as the provision of hydrotherapy services which is a specialist health service 
provided from appropriately equipped, specialist facilities and funded by the CCG.   
 
The Council’s objective is to provide accessible leisure facilities, rather than 
specialist health services, for which there is advice and guidance on best practice 
produced by Sport England in their ‘Accessible Sports Facilities Design Guidance 
Note. (http://www.sportengland.org/media/30246/Accessible-Sports-Facilities-
2010.pdf)  
 
The Council appreciates comments from the public as it continues to develop plans 
for delivering these options through dialogue with potential contractors as part of the 
procurement process for the new leisure contract.  This contract will be awarded in 
January 2015, with a contract start date of July 2015.’ 
 
Members of the Panel asked speakers some factual questions to which they gave 
their answers. 
 
Members of the Panel also asked some technical questions in terms of the actual 
provision.  Jack Latkovic suggested that Members could contact Sports and Active 
Team Business Development Manager directly with their queries.   
 

25 
  

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS  
 
The Panel confirmed the minutes of the previous two meetings as true records and 
they were duly signed by the Chair. 
 

26 
  

CABINET MEMBER UPDATE (10 MINUTES)  
 
The Panel noted the update (attached to these minutes as an appendix). 
 
 

Page 8



 

 

3 

Economic and Community Development Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Thursday, 17th July, 2014 

 

27 
  

ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT- UPDATE ON NEW 
TOOLS AND POWERS (20 MINUTES)  
 
 
The Chair invited Andy Thomas (Group Manager for Partnership Delivery) to 
introduce the report. 
 
The Chair commented that the new ASB, Crime and Policing Act tools and powers 
had been an important development and the Panel should monitor its progress. 
 
Councillor Appleyard commented that the public would welcome new powers though 
they would want to know at what point Community Trigger could be activated.  The 
community would also need to understand what the level of tolerance was.  
 
Councillor Anketell-Jones queried which powers the Council would have most 
interest in. 
 
Andy Thomas replied that there had been an ongoing discussion in terms of the level 
of tolerance.  The Community Trigger would be activated if a certain threshold has 
been passed. This varies from place to place but the Home Office have suggested 
that, at a minimum, it can be activated if: 
 

• We have reported a number (vary from area) of separate incidents of anti-
social behaviour and not received a satisfactory response; or 

• A number (vary from area) of individuals in the local community have reported 
similar incidents of ASB and are dissatisfied with the response. 

 
Andy Thomas suggested that the Panel should consider setting up a Task & Finish 
Group on this subject. 
 
The Panel also heard from officers on a successful pilot which had been happening 
in Mendip. 
 
Members of the Panel discussed on what part Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) 
would play with the new tools and powers; what steps victims should take; and who 
would be the lead contact. 
 
Members of the Panel agreed that these issues should be included in the review 
from the Task & Finish Group. 
 
It was RESOLVED to note the report and to consider establishment of a Task and 
Finish Group of Panel members to examine in full the implications of these new 
powers for the Council and its partners, including the issues raised in the debate. 
 

28 
  

STRATEGIC RIVER GROUP (15 MINUTES)  
 
The Chair invited Mark Minkley (Team Leader for Environment) to introduce the 
report. 
 

Page 9



 

 

4 

Economic and Community Development Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Thursday, 17th July, 2014 

 

Mark Minkley informed the Panel that the Cabinet, at its meeting on 6th June, 
approved the River Corridor Fund of £340K, which included identified edge 
protection safety works at Widcombe. 
 
Members of the Panel debated this matter and commented that the Panel would 
want a further update on this matter in six months’ time. 
 
The Panel requested that these issues be included in the next update: 

• Position of the Scrutiny within the whole process – the Panel felt that Scrutiny 
should have more prominent role. 

• Community Safety – an update either from River Safety Group of Strategic 
River Group 

• Point of contact – Panel felt that the public might be confused if there have 
been many points of contacts 

• Flooding issues  

• What is the exact role of River Co-ordinator? 

• Environment and how the river could contribute towards Energy Strategy. 
 
The Panel welcomed the creation of the Strategic River Group by saying that the 
group would contribute towards culture and events in the area. 
 
It was RESOLVED to receive a further update in six months’ time.  The update 
should include issues raised by the Panel in their debate. 
 

29 
  

BATH WORLD HERITAGE SITE: UPDATE (20 MINUTES)  
 
The Chair invited Tony Crouch (World Heritage Manager) to introduce the report. 
 
Members of the Panel welcomed the report and commended the forthcoming 
revision of the World Heritage Site Management Plan, the work of the World 
Heritage Enhancement Fund grant scheme and progress of the ‘Great Spas of 
Europe’ project. 
 
Members of the Panel also welcomed that the World Heritage Team had been 
working proactively with other organisations and services. 
 
It was RESOLVED to note the report. 
 

30 
  

PANEL WORKPLAN  
 
It was RESOLVED to note the workplan with the following addition: 
 

• An update from the Strategic River Group in January 2015 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 2.40 pm  
 

Chair(person)  

 

Page 10



 

 

5 

Economic and Community Development Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Thursday, 17th July, 2014 

 

Date Confirmed and Signed  

 
Prepared by Democratic Services 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT and REGENERATION 
Ben, 
 
It might be worth reiterating the latest on the Enterprise Area Masterplan, as presented to the 
Transport Strategy consultation launch, plus EA stakeholders last Tuesday and FoBRA last 
Thursday: 
 
NEXT STEPS: 
 
Cabinet November 2014 
 
Co-ordinated Strategy: 
- Economic Strategy - key driver 
- Core Strategy and Placemaking Plan 
- Transport Strategy 
- River Strategy  
- Enterprise Area Masterplan - delivery mechanism for the Economic Strategy 
 
Co-ordinated Delivery: 
- Bath Riverside 
- Bath Quays Waterside 
- Key routes: Seven Dials, Store St/Stall St, Saw Close 
- Innovation Quay 
 
CORE VALUES: 
 
Quality - of place, of developers, of occupiers  
Design - architecture, linkages, public space 
Heritage - views and roofscapes: World Heritage setting  
Sustainability - 'green' building, walking and cycling, ecology 
Water - at the heart of Bath's identity, River Avon, spa water, Kennet and Avon Canal 
Activity - leisure, families, health and wellbeing 
Rediscovering and reconnecting the River! 
 
HERITAGE SERVICES 
-  late summer evening opening has started at the Roman Baths, which will now remain open until 
10pm until the end of August (last admissions 9pm); the Pump Room restaurant is also open each 
evening; 
-  the Roman curses from the Sacred Spring have been inscribed by UNESCO on its Memory of 
the World UK list; you attended the ceremony in Edinburgh with Stephen Clews; 
-  Heritage Services has worked with the Britain-Australia Society on the installation of an armillary 
sphere in the NE garden of the Assembly Rooms to commemorate the bicentenary of the death of 
Admiral Arthur Phillip, first Governor of New South Wales and 'Father of modern Australia'; Phillip 
lived at 19 Bennett street opposite the garden; 
-  the Assembly Rooms' summer exhibition World War One in Fashion will be opened on Sunday 
by journalist Kate Adie, who has recently published a book about WWI and women; 
-  the grant-funded cataloguing project at the Record Office has unearthed a small diary recording 

Bath weather every day for six years between 1756 and 1761. It was kept by the Rector of Bath, 
Rev'd Duel Taylor and shows that extremes of weather were not unusual: "17 December 1759. 
A sharp north east wind which has frozen the river so hard the people have walked over it in 
great numbers for 3 days past". 

 
WORLD HERITAGE 
See full report later on agenda. 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 1

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING 

Economic and Community Development Policy Development & 
Scrutiny Panel 

 

MEETING 
25 September 2014 

 

 

  

TITLE: 
Community Safety:  Safe Places Scheme (formerly Community Safety 
Zones) update 

WARD: All  

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

 

List of attachments to this report: 

 

 
 
1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 The report updates the Panel on the ‘Safe Places Scheme’ – formerly known as 
‘Community Safety Zones’ for adults with learning disabilities.  The report has 
been prepared by Yoursay Advocacy. 

2 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That the Panel receive the report 

2.2 That the Panel identify any questions arising from the report 

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE) 

3.1 There are no direct financial implications for the Council arising from this update 
report. 

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL 

4.1 Relevant considerations include equalities, crime & disorder and human rights. 

5 THE REPORT 

5.1 In 2006 Bath and North East Somerset commissioned Your Say Advocacy to 
support adults with a learning disability to come together to have a more 
significant collective voice in their community. These groups became known as 
the B&NES Networks for people with learning disabilities. Very early on it was 

Agenda Item 9

Page 15



Printed on recycled paper 2

established that one of the key factors affecting the lives of people with learning 
disabilities was the fear of Hate Crime when out and about in the community.  

5.2 As a result the Networks sought to find ways to support people with learning 
disabilities who wanted to feel safer when out and about and began working with 
local Police. We also started to chart the experiences of people with learning 
disabilities experiencing Hate Crime. Well over half of the people we spoke to 
with learning disabilities had experiences Hate Crime at some time both of quite 
a low level and or a more serious nature – but few ever reported it to the Police. 
For many people with learning disabilities this was a regular feature of their life. 

5.3 In 2007 Network members went off to Sheffield to a conference for people with 
learning disabilities about Hate Crime and we came back with the idea of 
Community Safety Zones – safe venues across the community where people 
with learning disabilities can go if they feel afraid or experience Hate Crime when 
out in the community – somewhere where staff will have had some training, can 
help the individual report their experience and assist them in getting home 
safely.  From 2007 – 2013 we worked with lots of partners across B&NES to set 
up Community Safety Zones across Midsomer Norton and Radstock, Keynsham 
and central Bath. 

5.4 In 2013 Avon and Somerset Police sought to set up ‘Safe Places’ force wide – 
essentially the model of the ‘Community Safety Zones’ - we happily shared with 
the Police our resources and experiences and supported them in the production 
of accessible information and resources. This was a great endorsement of the 
Community Safety Zone project and lent the weight of the Police to the project – 
it also means that people with learning disabilities can now travel across the 
whole of Avon and Somerset and know that they can have the same confidence 
that there is somewhere safe to go if they have a negative experience. 

5.5 The Network had the option to retain the name Community Safety Zones as they 
were familiar with this, but chose to use the new name of ‘Safe Places’ and have 
re-branded all their information here in B&NES. This has been quite a big job 
and has meant re-visiting all the Community Safety Zones to check they are all 
happy to continue to be places that are willing to support people with learning 
disabilities in this way. 

5.6 From the end of 2013 and throughout 2014 Network members and the Police 
have been working together to extend the network of Safe Places across B&NES 
and are really pleased that we have now been able to add Twerton, Odd Down 
and Snow Hill to the places which are well supported by Safe Places. 

5.7 We now have a significant number of Safe Places across Bath and North East 
Somerset and whilst we still have some work to do to make sure we have all 
areas covered we are really happy with the work that has been achieved so far. 

6 CONSULTATION 

6.1 None undertaken in this report 

7 RISK MANAGEMENT 

7.1 This report is subject to the risk management of external partners. 

 
Page 16



Printed on recycled paper 3

Contact person  Lores Savine, Community Safety Officer – 01225 396420 

Report Author Kirstie Mann – Your Say Advocacy 

Paul Rogerson – BANES Networks CIC 

Background 
papers 

 

Please contact the contact person if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 

 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 1

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING/

DECISION 

MAKER:  

Economic and Community Development  Policy Development & 
Scrutiny Panel  Committee 

MEETING

DATE:  
25th September 2014 

 

  

TITLE: 
Update on Apprenticeship , Work Placements, Work Experience, 
Internships and Volunteering Policy  

WARD: All  

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

 

List of attachments to this report: N/A 

 

 

 

1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 Update on the Council’s Apprenticeship Work Placements, Work Experience, 
Internships and Volunteering Policy 

2 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 The Panel are asked to consider an update following the previous panel presentation on 
the 23rd May 2013, concerning the proposed Apprenticeships, Work Placements, Work 
Experience, Internships and Volunteering Policy, which was adopted by full Council in 
September 2013. 

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE) 

3.1 There have been no new resource implications since Council adoption in September 
2013. 

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL 

4.1 B&NES’ Economic/ Health & Wellbeing Strategy to promote employment as a means to 
improve life chances and Social Mobility. 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 19



Printed on recycled paper 2

 

5 THE REPORT 

5.1 Following the last PDS presentation in May 2013 and adoption of the policy in 
September 2013 a number of outcomes have been achieved both internally and 
externally: 

• Total apprenticeship starts across the council for the 2013/2014 financial year 
increased to 18 from 8 the previous year.  

• A managers ‘Tool Kit’ is now available on the intranet HR system, this will ensure 
that when officers are engaging with this agenda they have the correct information 
to aid them in creating these opportunities.  

 

• A workshop attended by 38 Directors and Managers to launch the Policy and 
Manager’s Toolkit was held at the Guildhall on 30th July 2013.The Chief Exec, 
Cabinet member for Sustainable Development and representatives from local 
colleges, the National Apprenticeship Service, Bath Spa University and Jobcentre 
Plus gave short presentations to encourage participation in the programme. Next 
event is to be held on the 5th November.  

• A Graduate intern was employed at the fashion museum for 6 months and has now 
extended by a further 6 months, through the Cultural Internship programme.  

 

• Successful completion of the Crest Regeneration S106 agreement (phase 1) with 
the employment of 10 apprentices over three years by Crest and its subcontractors. 

 

• 12 Work Experience opportunities and 1 apprenticeship underway on the Purnells 
Factory site development. 

 

• Completion of the Keynsham Town Hall development employment & training KPIs, 
with 2 apprentice completions and 1 young person leaving care work placement. 

 

• Development of a S106 agreement with Taylor Wimpey on the Somerdale Housing 
site, to provide 20 apprenticeship starts and 80 work experience placements over 8 
years.  

 

• Agreement with Deeley Freed to provide 5 apprentices in the initial construction 
phase of the Bath Casino.  

 

• 12 project search placement starts across the council on September 2014. 
 

 
 

6 RATIONALE 

6.1 N/A 

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

7.1 N/A 

 

8 CONSULTATION 

Page 20



Printed on recycled paper 3

8.1 Divisional Director – Community Regeneration, S 151 Officer, Council Monitoring 
Officer. 

 

9 RISK MANAGEMENT 

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been undertaken, in 
compliance with the Council's decision making risk management guidance. 

 

Contact person  Duncan Kerr 01225 477287 

Background 
papers 

Full Council Report Policy: Apprenticeships, Work Placements, 

Work Experience, Internships and Volunteering – Adopted 
September 2013  

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 

 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



     

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 P

D
S

 F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 

P
L
A

N
 

 
T
h
is
 F
o
rw

a
rd
 P
la
n
 l
is
ts
 a
ll 
th
e
 i
te
m
s
 c
o
m
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
o
v
e
r 
th
e
 n
e
x
t 
fe
w
 m

o
n
th
s
. 

In
e
v
it
a
b
ly
, 
s
o
m
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
p
u
b
lis
h
e
d
 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 
m
a
y
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
; 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 
re
c
o
g
n
is
e
s
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
p
la
n
 
is
 
a
 
b
e
s
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t,
 a
t 
th
e
 t
im

e
 o
f 
p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
, 
o
f 
a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
in
g
. 
 T
h
e
 o
n
lin
e
 F
o
rw

a
rd
 P

la
n
 i
s
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 a
n
d
 

c
a
n
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
t:
 

h
tt
p
:/
/d
e
m
o
c
ra
c
y
.b
a
th
n
e
s
.g
o
v
.u
k
/m

g
P
la
n
s
H
o
m
e
.a
s
p
x
?
b
c
r=
1
 

T
h
e
 F
o
rw

a
rd
 P
la
n
 d
e
m
o
n
s
tr
a
te
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 o
p
e
n
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 m

a
k
in
g
. 
 I
t 
a
s
s
is
ts
 t
h
e
 

P
a
n
e
l 
in
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
p
u
t 
to
 p
o
lic
y
 f
o
rm

u
la
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t,
 a
n
d
 i
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t.
 

S
h
o
u
ld
 y
o
u
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
th
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 a
u
th
o
r 
o
r 
J
a
c
k
 L
a
tk
o
v
ic
, 
D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (
0
1
2
2
5
 

3
9
4
4
5
2
).
  
A
 f
o
rm

a
l 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 5
 c
le
a
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 d
a
y
s
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 
  

A
g
e
n
d
a
 p
a
p
e
rs
 c
a
n
 b
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 a
t 
th
e
 G
u
ild
h
a
ll 
(B
a
th
),
 H
o
lli
e
s
 (
M
id
s
o
m
e
r 
N
o
rt
o
n
),
 R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 

(K
e
y
n
s
h
a
m
) 
a
n
d
 a
t 
B
a
th
 C
e
n
tr
a
l,
 K
e
y
n
s
h
a
m
 a
n
d
 M
id
s
o
m
e
r 
N
o
rt
o
n
 p
u
b
lic
 l
ib
ra
ri
e
s

.
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 23



 

1
 

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
P

D
S

 
F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 

 

B
a

th
 &

 N
o

r
th

 E
a

s
t 

S
o

m
e

r
s

e
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 
A
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
t 
fu
tu
re
 P
a
n
e
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

R
e
f 

D
a
te
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r/
s
 

T
it
le
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 A
u
th
o
r 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 

L
e
a
d
 

E
C
O
N
O
M
IC
 A
N
D
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
 P
O
L
IC
Y
 D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
A
N
E
L
: 
2
5
T
H
 S
E
P
T
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
4
 

2
5
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
4
 

   

E
C
D
 P
D
S
 

 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
m
e
m
b
e
rs
' 
u
p
d
a
te
s
 

   
 

2
5
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
4
 

   

E
C
D
 P
D
S
 

 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
: 
S
a
fe
 Z
o
n
e
s
 

 
S
u
e
 D
ic
k
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
2
2
5
 4
7
7
4
1
5
 

 

2
5
 S
e
p
 2
0
1
4
 

   

E
C
D
 P
D
S
 

 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 a
p
p
re
n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip
s
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 
to
 b
e
 

c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

  

 

E
C
O
N
O
M
IC
 A
N
D
 C
O
M
M
U
N
IT
Y
 D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
 P
O
L
IC
Y
 D
E
V
E
L
O
P
M
E
N
T
 A
N
D
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
A
N
E
L
: 
2
0
T
H
 N
O
V
E
M
B
E
R
 2
0
1
4
 

2
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
1
4
 

   

E
C
D
 P
D
S
 

 
M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
 P
la
n
 

 
L
o
u
is
e
 F
ra
d
d
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
2
2
5
 3
9
5
3
8
5
 

L
o
u
is
e
 F
ra
d
d
 

2
0
 N
o
v
 2
0
1
4
 

   

E
C
D
 P
D
S
 

 
C
o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g
 F
a
m
il
ie
s
 u
p
d
a
te
 

 
P
a
u
la
 B
ro
m
le
y
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
2
2
5
 3
9
6
9
8
4
 

 

F
U
T
U
R
E
 I
T
E
M
S
 

    

E
C
D
 P
D
S
 

 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
iv
e
r 
G
ro
u
p
 u
p
d
a
te
 f
o
r 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
5
 

   
 

Page 24



  

2
 

R
e
f 

D
a
te
 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 

M
a
k
e
r/
s
 

T
it
le
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 A
u
th
o
r 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 

L
e
a
d
 

F
U
T
U
R
E
 I
T
E
M
S
 

 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 R
iv
e
r 
G
ro
u
p
 u
p
d
a
te
 f
o
r 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
5
 

T
h
e
 F
o
rw
a
rd
 P
la
n
 i
s
 a
d
m
in
is
te
re
d
 b
y
 D
E
M
O
C
R
A
T
IC
 S
E
R
V
IC
E
S
: 
 J
a
c
k
 L
a
tk
o
v
ic
 0
1
2
2
5
 3
9
4
4
5
2
  
D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
_
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
@
b
a
th
n
e
s
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 MINUTES
	Cabinet Member update

	9 Safe Places Scheme (formerly Community Safety Zones) update (30 minutes)
	10 Update on Apprenticeship , Work Placements, Work Experience, Internships and Volunteering Policy (30 minutes)
	11 Panel Workplan

